
If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please 
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
 

Council Offices, 
Urban Road, 

Kirkby in Ashfield 
Nottingham 
NG17 8DA 

 

Agenda 
 
Scrutiny Panel B 
 
 

Date: Thursday, 28th January, 2021 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Venue: Ashfield District Council’s YouTube Channel 

  

For any further information please contact: 
 

Lynn Cain 
 

l.cain@ashfield.gov.uk 
 

01623 457317 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCFr4nJ9HVt9NAg1MlRMb4kw/featured


 

 

SCRUTINY PANEL B 

Membership 

 

Chairman: Councillor Christian Chapman 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Trevor Locke 

 
Councillors:  
Ciaran Brown Melanie Darrington 
Dale Grounds Phil Rostance 
David Walters  

 
 
 

FILMING/AUDIO RECORDING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be subject to filming or audio recording. If you have any queries 
regarding this, please contact Members’ Services on 01623 457317. 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMONS 
 
You are hereby requested to attend a meeting of the Scrutiny Panel B to be held at the 
time and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the business set out 
below. 
 

 
Carol Cooper-Smith 
Chief Executive 



 

 

AGENDA Page 
 
1.   To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests and 
Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests.  
 
 

 

3.   To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 12 
November 2020.  
 
 

5 - 10 

4.   Scrutiny Review: Climate Change.  
 
 

11 - 18 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SCRUTINY PANEL B 
 

Virtual Meeting held on Thursday, 12th November, 2020 at 7.00 pm 
 
 

Present:  
 

Councillor Christian Chapman in the Chair; 

 Councillors Ciaran Brown, Dale Grounds, 
Trevor Locke (Vice-Chair), Phil Rostance and 
David Walters. 
 

Apology for Absence: Councillor Melanie Darrington. 
 

Officers Present: Lynn Cain, Mike Joy and Shane Wright. 

 
 
 

SB.7 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests 
and Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests 
 

 No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
SB.8 Minutes 

 
 RESOLVED 

that the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 15 October 2020, be 
received and approved as a correct record. 
 

 
SB.9 Scrutiny Review: Climate Change 

 
 The Chairman introduced the report and the new review topic in relation to 

climate change.  It was intended that the meeting would open up any initial 
discussions in relation to the climate change agenda and enable the Panel to 
set the terms of reference for the review as appropriate.   
 
The Scrutiny Research Officer reminded the Panel that Council had originally 
announced that it would be setting up a Climate Change Commission following 
consideration of a climate emergency motion at a Council meeting in July 
2019.  However due to a number of difficult challenges over the previous 12 
months including the Covid-19 pandemic, it has been agreed to facilitate the 
review through a Scrutiny Panel instead. 
 
The report attached to the agenda offered some introductory information 
including: 
 

 the definition of climate change; 

 the Council’s Corporate Plan priorities and commitment towards the 
cleaner and greener agenda;  

 the Council’s actions thus far in reducing its carbon footprint; 

 the outcomes from the 2019 employee survey regarding climate change 
mitigation. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 
The Corporate Plan outlined numerous key projects, programmes, and 
initiatives to be implemented within the next four years and reinforced the 
Council’s goals and ambitions regarding climate change, along with any 
strategies and policies that were already in place. 
 
It was now for Members to decide from a plethora of climate change 
considerations to choose what the Panel’s focus would be.  Once established, 
relevant officers would be invited to attend the meetings to offer insight and 
guidance to facilitate the review as appropriate. 
 
The Service Manager, Scrutiny and Democratic Services reiterated the fact 
that the subject of climate change was far reaching and covered a wide range 
of equally important topics to consider.  It was therefore important that the 
Panel chose an area of focus that it could realistically hope to influence and 
would add real value to the Council’s ongoing commitment towards climate 
change and mitigation. 
 
It was also acknowledged that the Council worked with many partners that 
were also committed to reducing their carbon footprint and the remit of the 
review could include how climate change was being tackled simultaneously on 
a partnership level. 
 
At this point in the proceedings, the Chairman introduced Arran Rangi from 
Green New Deal UK.  Due to growing concerns around climate breakdown, 
the non-profit organisation was committed to lobbying government to step up 
and deliver a game-changing plan for health, for jobs and for climate action.    
 
Mr. Rangi introduced himself and commented that it was great to see the 
Council taking action and with the District being traditionally shaped by 
industry and mining, it would be a great opportunity for Ashfield to be a 
forerunner and set a good example for climate change mitigation within the 
public sector. 
 
Green New Deal UK was about decarbonising the UK, creating secure jobs, 
transforming the economy, protecting and restoring habitats and wild areas 
and promoting global justice. 
 
Education at school age was a powerful tool to begin addressing climate 
issues and it was suggested that the Council could engage with local schools 
to ascertain their ideas/views and in particular, the Youth Council and 
Ecocommittee at Ashfield School, who were currently very active.  It was also 
suggested that Members visited the Client Earth website which worked as a 
charity utilising the law to create powerful change and a future where people 
and the planet can thrive together. 
 
Members took the opportunity to commence discussing the topic and 
commented that Nottinghamshire County Council had been committed to 
climate change mitigation for some time and inviting an officer from their 
Energy and Carbon Management team to gain some insight into 
Nottinghamshire’s aspirations for reducing carbon emissions would be 
extremely helpful.   
 

Page 6



 

The Panel also discussed the Council’s own commitments towards reducing 
its carbon footprint and agreed that officers from its Planning, Housing and 
Waste Management Teams would be able to offer an expert overview of the 
work currently being undertaken. 
 
Having acknowledged the wealth of information to consider and examine, it 
was agreed that a series of informal Panel B meetings would be better suited 
to facilitating the review and would enable officers to focus more efficiently on 
each area of investigation.  It was therefore mooted that four informal meetings 
should be scheduled to consider the following in turn: 
 
1. The Council’s current commitments to reducing its carbon footprint across 

its range of services; 
 
2. How the Council’s partners are committing to the climate change agenda; 
 
3. How local businesses and community groups are playing their part to 

tackle climate change; 
 

4. To ascertain the views of younger people regarding protection of their 
future planet. 

 
As mentioned previously, education was a powerful tool to encourage people 
to contribute towards protecting their planet and Members agreed that a social 
media campaign offering ideas and tips for reducing their carbon footprint 
would be constructive. 
 
Mr. Rangi spoke about the concept of retrofitting older houses and how this 
provided many longer term benefits to residents going beyond emissions 
savings, which included lower energy bills, warmer homes and enhanced 
health and wellbeing.  The Chairman advised that the Council currently offered 
a ‘warmer homes grant’ and commented that the Authority had an excellent 
record of keeping its housing stock in good repair and was committed to green 
schemes wherever possible. 
 
The Scrutiny Research Officer informed the Panel that the Council were 
currently developing an Environmental Charter and Climate Change Strategy 
and it would be useful to consider the draft documents when they became 
available and invite the officers/authors to discuss the content and 
methodologies of their research at a future meeting. 
 
Mr Rangi commented that private transport was one of the world’s biggest 
sources of greenhouse gases with emissions rising every year and local 
authorities could contribute to reducing the carbon footprint by investing in 
better public transport, investing in walking and cycling infrastructure and 
pedestrianising high streets wherever possible. 
 
The Panel concurred with this view and acknowledged that Nottinghamshire 
County Council were consistently investing in their tram infrastructure and had 
recently purchased four more electric low emission buses to add to their 
growing fleet.  It was also important to invest in safe and accessible walking 
and cycling routes to provide viable alternatives to using personal vehicles. 
 

Page 7



 

In relation to the debate surrounding cycling and walking infrastructures, a 
note of caution was raised by a Panel Member that any future development 
and expansion of greener infrastructure should not be at the expense of 
valuable greenspaces around the District that needed to be protected for the 
future. 
 
Members discussed the merits of tree planting and it was acknowledged that 
whilst small tree planting initiatives were laudable, the commitment to tree 
planting to offset carbon emissions would need to be on a much larger scale 
and be more radical in nature, to have any real effect.  However the Panel did 
accede to the fact that small steps taken by many people ended up making 
significant changes and any efforts to make carbon savings, both 
organisationally and on a personal level, were to be welcomed.  
 
Having raised the issue of waste recycling and the required focus around 
resource efficiency and waste prevention, Members were reminded that they 
already had an item on the Scrutiny Workplan for 2020/21 to look at waste 
recycling within Ashfield.  It was agreed that it would be prudent not to 
duplicate work and once the Waste Recycling review was commenced in early 
2021, the Panel could then consider any pertinent issues with regard to waste 
collection at that point. 
 
To conclude the evening’s debate, the Chairman took the opportunity to thank 
Arran Rangi for his attendance and contribution to the discussion. He 
responded by saying that the enthusiasm of the Panel was great to see and 
that engaging local communities would be paramount to effecting real change 
on a wider scale. 
 
RESOLVED that 
a) the terms of reference for the ‘Climate Change’ review be as follows:- 
 

  Review Objectives 
 

 Understand progress against the Council’s ‘Cleaner and Greener’ 
priority, including the development of key policy documents such as 
the Environmental Charter and the Climate Change Action Plan 

 Understand what measures the Council may already have in place 
to mitigate the impact of climate change  

 Consider how the Council works with key partners regarding climate 
change mitigation  

 
Methodology 
 

 Examine key Council policies, strategies and action plans 

 Understand national context to give the review context 

 Informal working groups dedicated to key themes within the review 

 Work with key partners 

 Examine best practice examples from other organisations  
 

Involvement  
 

 Council Officers working to deliver the ‘Cleaner and Greener’ 
corporate priority 

Page 8



 

 Key partners committed to the climate change agenda 

 Local schools and youth groups 

 Local businesses and community groups 
 

Information  
 

 National and local data 

 Ashfield District Council’s Environmental Charter, Green Business 
Scheme, Climate Change and Environmental Sustainability Strategy 
and Action Plan 

 Details of national initiatives  

 LGA guidance and case studies 
 
b) it be agreed that the initial exploratory work be commenced via a series of 

informal meetings to enable Panel Members to engage expert witnesses 
and capture pertinent data as required to facilitate the next stage of the 
review. 

 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.23 pm  
 

 
 
Chairman. 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

Report To: SCRUTINY PANEL B Date: 28 JANUARY 2021 

Heading: SCRUTINY REVIEW: CLIMATE CHANGE 

Portfolio Holder: NOT APPLICABLE 

Ward/s:  ALL 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject to Call-In: NO 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is to present Members of Scrutiny Panel B with further information to 
progress the Scrutiny Review: Climate Change and the Panel’s look into the Council’s ongoing 
commitment to mitigate climate change.  
 
Specifically, this report highlights some useful guidance provided by the Local Government 
Association (LGA) and Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) on the role of scrutiny in climate 
change programmes. A summary of the discussion held at the informal working group on 20 
January 2021 is also included. 
 

Recommendation(s) 

 
Scrutiny Panel B Members are recommended to: 
 

a. Note the information contained in this report. 
 

b. Discuss how the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny guidance can best be applied 
during this review.  
 

c. Consider future working group meeting dates, focus themes, and key involvement.   
 

 
Reasons for Recommendation(s) 
 
Climate Change was added to the Scrutiny Workplan 2020/2021 by Members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in July 2020.  
 
Alternative Options Considered 
 
No alternative options have been considered at this stage of the review.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Detailed Information 
 
GUIDANCE 
 
Centre for Governance and Scrutiny: The Role of Scrutiny in Climate Change Programmes  
 
The CfGS have released a guide on how to go about scrutiny and inquiry on climate change at a 
local level, with a focus on the implications for councils declaring climate emergencies. The 
guidance was produced with support from the LGA.  
 
Please see below some details of the guidance document. 
 
Initial key points the CfGS raise in the guidance: 
 

 The 2018 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change report stated that at the current rate 
the world is on track to reach a global temperature rise of 3 degrees Celsius by the end of the 
century 
 

 The general consensus is that significant impacts on humans and the biosphere will be 
apparent with 1.5 degrees of warming 
 

 Limiting warming to this level may still be possible, if concerted action is taken 
 

 The Climate Change Act 2008 mandates some of this action – in particular reduction in 
emissions by at least 80 percent on 1990 levels by 2050, alongside legally binding carbon 
budgets and regular reporting of climate risks  
 

Climate change is a critical global problem that will impact environments everywhere and individuals 
across all levels of society. Tackling climate change is a shared responsibility. It is deeply 
connected to other policy issues, there are no clearly defined solutions - certainly not at a local level 
- and new consequences are emerging. Currently, there is a great deal of uncertainty over who 
should respond to climate change and how this can be achieved. An effective response to climate 
change is not simply an issue that can be dealt with at the global scale; some form of local action is 
necessary for lasting environmental, social and institutional change. 
 
Councils across the UK have recognised a duty to act. Some are already acting on climate change 
– often by using their convening power to agree solutions across a whole area, rather than just 
focusing on the council as an institution. Now, with many having declared a ‘climate emergency’, 
there is a growing understanding that response to the challenge needs to be holistic; but even here, 
there is some uncertainty about what such declarations commit councils to in practice. Councils that 
have made this bold statement now need to show how they will prioritise and embed climate action 
in all policy areas. 
 
The challenge has been thrown into sharper relief by the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. At first 
glance it may seem that the impact of the pandemic will be positive for climate change. Globally, 
lockdown measures substantially reduced emissions, and in the UK measures by highways 
authorities have seen roadways reprioritised to focus on the needs of pedestrians and cyclists. But 
in the medium and long term, the position is more uncertain: 
 

 Lessened use of public transport might make service levels unsustainable, leading to more 
people using cars and putting further public transport investment in danger – compounding 
the impact of pollution from private vehicles 

Page 12



 Councils’ overall plans on climate change – written in the pre-COVID world and underpinned 
by assumptions about economic growth and personal behaviour – could now become 
undeliverable unless they are substantially redrafted 
 

 Councils’ financial situation focuses attention on immediate, in-year life and limb issues. 
Even before COVID, money to take action on long term issues was tight – the situation is 
now critical. 
 

Both COVID-19 and the continuing threat of climate change demonstrate the needs for places and 
communities to become more resilient. Central to this is effective partnership working. Councils 
have a uniquely important role in using their buying power and resources to push forward action on 
climate change. They also have convening power in the local area – the ability to bring together a 
range of individuals and organisations and to work with them to develop a coherent and consistent 
approach to the issue. An approach to climate change which limits councils to thinking and acting 
only on their conventional duties and responsibilities will not take advantage of these opportunities – 
and is likely to be ineffective 
 
The guidance explains that scrutiny has a critical role to play in the cross-cutting issues presented 
by climate change. Scrutiny functions can: 
 

 Play an active role in stress-testing and querying assumptions in the development of climate 
action plans, particularly in light of the pandemic 
 

 Secure wider political buy-in for long-term action, in the context of significant financial 
pressures which make such buy-in critical 
 

 Play a formal accountability role as councils come to make public commitments on climate 
action – in particular, the declaration of climate emergencies 
 

 Support local people to engage with the council on these complex and long-term issues 
 

 Support the council to engage with partners and others in the locality, to better understand 
and align priorities 

 
The guidance sets out 10 questions that can be posed as part of the review process. The questions 
are as follows: 
 

 How well does the council understand the need to take action locally? 
 

 How does the council’s leadership champion and direct action on climate change? 
 

 How is the council adopting a clear and detailed strategic plan, and how is it mainstreaming 
climate change mitigation and adaptation? 
 

 Has the council reviewed its investment strategy, supply chains, and procurement models to 
give due consideration to climate change impacts? 
 

 How is the council integrating sustainability and resilience into its transport and energy 
plans? 
 

Page 13



 How is the council planning to understand and act on the need to adapt existing properties 
and estates to address the impacts of climate change – and to plan for new housing stock 
which is resilient to these impacts? 
 

 How is the council promoting climate change education, diversifying the labour market, and 
focusing on sectors that are sustainable? 
 

 What measures are being taken to ensure that health and social care systems will be 
resilient with the extra pressures they will come under due to climate change? 
 

 How does the council identify those who are most at risk from the impacts of climate change, 
and what is being done to assist the most vulnerable? 
 

 How is the council supporting and working with all relevant private and civic actors in the 
area towards climate change mitigation and adaptation? 

 
The questions put forward by the CfGS are exploratory in nature, designed to invite further 
supplementary questions depending on local circumstances. The above questions will be useful for: 
 

 Scoping reviews to ensure focus in the context of a subject of significant potential breadth 
and depth. These questions could enable scrutiny to identify which areas the function could 
add most value.  
 

 Planning local community involvement, giving a clearer sense of how best to engage the 
public and understand aspirations. 
 

 Planning local business involvement to understand local context 
 

 Developing realistic, meaningful recommendations that engage both with the global 
challenge and the need for local action. The 10 questions can provide a basis on which to 
construct evidence-based recommendations that accurately reflect current plans, best 
practice, and activity.  

 
CORPORATE PLAN 
 
As discussed at the previous meeting, the objectives set out within the Council’s Corporate Plan 
relating to the commitment towards climate change mitigation will be a useful reference point 
throughout the review.  
 
‘Cleaner and Greener’ is one of the five key priorities identified by the Council set out in the 
Corporate Plan. Within the Corporate Plan, the Council’s vision for the ‘Cleaner and Greener’ 
priority is established: 
 
By 2023, we will create a cleaner and greener Ashfield, enabling communities and businesses to 
thrive in a clean and tidy district, minimising waste and recycling more. 
 
Ashfield is pro-active in encouraging more recycling, tackling environmental crime and finding 
innovative ways of delivering services that are responsive to the needs of our residents, visitors and 
businesses. 
 
By working with our communities and businesses, the Council is better able to understand what 
matters and to shape services to help people enjoy living, visiting, and working in Ashfield. 

Page 14



The Corporate Plan further outlines numerous key projects, programmes, and initiatives to be 
implemented within the next four years. Please see some of the initiatives that may be of interest to 
this review: 
 
Environment 
 

 Deliver against our Environmental Charter 
 

 Refresh the Green Business Scheme to engage businesses and promote environmentally 
sustainable behaviours 
 

 Work with community volunteers and local business volunteers to encourage an increase in 
ownership of community open spaces 
 

 Contribute to a reduction of CO2 emissions by increasing tree coverage in Ashfield 
 

 Develop a Climate Change and Environmental Sustainability Strategy and Action Plan 
 

INFORMAL WORKING GROUP  
 
As agreed by Members at the previous meeting of the Panel: 
 
It be agreed that the initial exploratory work be commenced via a series of informal meetings to 
enable Panel Members to engage expert witnesses and capture pertinent data as required to 
facilitate the next stage of the review. 
 
The first informal working group of the review was held on 20 January with attendance from 
Members and both the Assistant Director of Assets and Investment and Strategic Asset Manager.  
 
The Assistant Director of Assets and Investment provided Members with a comprehensive update 
regarding the ongoing work of the Council and the commitment to mitigate climate change.  
 
Members were informed that effective collaborative work is imperative and a key priority in climate 
change mitigation. A Climate Change Officers Working Group has been established, with 
representation from all sections of the Council, to enable Officers to effectively disseminate ideas 
and work in the same direction. The Council has also been working in partnership with the Lead 
Officers Energy Group, the Midlands Energy Hub, and the Local Enterprise partnership.  
 
Work has been undertaken, in collaboration with partners, to have a fuller understanding of the 
Council’s climate position. This includes: 
 

 Energy audits 

 Energy data analysis 

 Carbon baseline 

 Employee commuting survey 

 Carbon footprint exercise  
 
Work is being undertaken to establish the Council’s carbon baseline, which includes electricity, gas, 
water, and fuel usage, as well as the carbon cost of purchasing. This carbon baseline will allow the 
Council to more decisively plot future reductions in emissions.  

Page 15



The Council is also working to explore all available funding streams; however, Members were 
informed that often potential funding streams have difficult deadlines and hard to deliver projects. 
Nevertheless, opportunities will continue to be explored and pursued where appropriate.   
 
Members also discussed the difficulty in achieving the right balance in procurement exercises. 
Often, superior green credentials will come at a higher cost – is that something the Council can 
afford to do?  
 
Further discussions were held on: 
 

 Awareness campaigns 

 Grant application processes 

 Resourcing 

 Housing stock conditions/developing housing strategy  

 Training requirements 

 Towns Fund  

 Leisure centre impact on emissions 
 
Overall, the working group proved extremely useful at this exploratory stage of the review, and the 
insight provided by the Assistant Director of Assets and Investment and Strategic Asset Manager 
will enable the Panel to focus on the key issues where scrutiny can have the most positive impact. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
Members have agreed that due to the significant potential breadth and depth of this review topic, it 
will be most appropriate to utilise informal working groups as part of the information gathering 
phase.  
 
Members are asked to discuss and approve the most appropriate focus themes and key 
involvement for future working group dates. Potential dates will be presented to Members at the 
formal meeting.  
 
 
Implications 
 
Corporate Plan: 
 
Details of how the Scrutiny Review: Climate Change aligns with the Council’s Corporate Plan are 
including within the detailed information section of the report. 
 
Legal: 
 
There are no legal implications at this stage of the review. Any legal implications identified involving 
any recommendations to be made to Cabinet at the end of the review will be appropriately 
addressed in the final report. 
 
Finance: 
 
There are no financial implications at this stage of the review. Any financial implications identified 
involving any recommendations to be made to Cabinet at the end of the review will be appropriately 
addressed in the final report. 
 

Page 16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Risk: 
 
Any risks and mitigation discovered over the course of this review will be presented in a final report 
to Cabinet along with the Panel’s recommendations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Human Resources: 
There are no HR implications at this stage of the review. Any HR implications identified involving 
any recommendations to be made to Cabinet at the end of the review will be appropriately 
addressed in the final report. 
 
Environmental/Sustainability 
 
Environmental and sustainability implications will be heavily considered throughout this review, 
details of which will be included within the detailed information section of the report. 
 
Equalities: 
 
There are no equalities implications at this stage of the review. Any equalities implications identified 
involving any recommendations to be made to Cabinet at the end of the review will be appropriately 
addressed in the final report. 
 
Other Implications: 
 
There are no other implications at this stage of the review. Any other implications identified involving 
any recommendations to be made to Cabinet at the end of the review will be appropriately 
addressed in the final report. 
 
Reason(s) for Urgency  
 
None. 
 
Reason(s) for Exemption 
 
None. 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

General Fund – Revenue Budget 
 

None at this stage.  

General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

Risk 
 

Mitigation  

None at this stage.  
 

None at this stage.  

Page 17



Background Papers 
 
Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, 10 questions to ask if you are scrutinising climate change, 
September 2020.  
 
Report Author and Contact Officer 
 
Shane Wright 
Scrutiny Research Officer 
01623 457318 
s.wright@ashfield.gov.uk  

Page 18

mailto:s.wright@ashfield.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 12 November 2020.
	4 Scrutiny Review: Climate Change.

